
MEETING AGENDA 
MOUNTAIN BROOK ClTY COUNCIL 

ClTY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108) 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAlN BROOK, AL 35213 

SEPTEMBER 26,2016,7:00 P.M. 

1. Judge Dorothea Batiste, candidate for re-election to the office of Alabama Circuit IO(Place 23). 

2. Approval of the minutes of the September 12,2016 regular meeting of the City Council. 

3. consideration: Resolution reappointing Chris Mitchell to the Board of Zoning Adjustment, to serve 
without compensation, through September 13,2019. 

4. Consideration: Resolution reappointing William Hereford to the Board of Zoning Adjustment, to serve 
without compensation, through August 9,201 9. 

5. Consideration: Resolution awarding the bid for the scheduled maintenance of the HVAC systems at The 
Emmet O'Neal Library. 

6. Consideration: Resolution approving the issuance of a permit pursuant to Ordinance No. 1948 with 
respect to the installation of a new support structure in the vicinity of Hastings Road for a small cell data 
and communications antenna (BRM079). 

7. Consideration: Resolution reappointing Sally Legg is hereby reappointed to the Village Design Review 
Committee to serve without compensation until August 23,20 19. 

8. Consideration: Resolution appointing John G. Wilson is hereby appointed to the Tree Commission (to fill 
the unexpired term of Ken Key) to serve without compensation until December 12,2017. 

9. Consideration: Resolution creating one (1) Police Officer position (Class no. 60314, G17i10) for the Police 
Department to be filled at the discretion of the City Manager in accordance with the "Rules and 
Regulations" of the Personnel Board of Jefferson County for the purpose of assigning an APOST-certified 
position to the White Collar Crime Task Force overseen by the U. S. Secret Service and Jefferson County 
District Attorney. 

10. Consideration: Resolution authorizing additional professional services with respect to the professional 
services agreement between the City and Nimrod Long & Associates previously authorized (Resolution 
No. 2015-1 80) regarding the installation/construction of a pedestrian bridge over Watkins Branch. 

I 1. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of a professional services agreement with Walter 
Schoel Engineering with respect to their assistance with project bid administration, final design plans, and 
evaluation and supervision of the construction and installation of a pedestrian bridge over Shades Creek. 

12. Consideration: Resolution awarding the bid for the construction of the Watkins Branch bridge and 
sidewalk connector and authorizing the execution of a contract for same. 

13. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution/renewal of two ground leases with respect to the 
English Village public parking lots. 

14. Consideration: Ordinance amending the 20 17 budget. 

15. Consideration: Ordinance authorizing the installation of a stop sign on Robin Circle at its intersection with 
Robin Drive and provide for punishment for violations thereof. 



MEETING AGENDA 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108) 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35233 

SEPTEMBER 26,2016,7:00 P.M. 

16. Consideration: Ordinance repealing Ordinance No. 1693 and prohibiting smoking in certain enclosed and 
outdoor public places in the City. 

17. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is October 10,2016, at 790 p.m. in the 
Council Chamber ofcity Hall Iocated at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 

18. Comments from residents. 

19. Adjourn. 



Minute Book 88 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-IMEETING DISCUSSION 

SEPTEMBER 12,2016 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on Monday, the 12th day of September, 2016. The Council President 
called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Executive Session 

It was moved by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard that the City Council convene in 
executive session to discuss two matters involving real estate negotiations. The motion was seconded 
by Council President Smith. The City Attorney certified that the subject of the executive session is 
allowed pursuant to the Open Meetings Act. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the 
vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice 6. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith declared that the motion carried by a vote of 5 -0  and then asked that 
the members of the audience be excused. She also announced that the City Council shall reconvene 
upon conclusion of the executive session at approximately 5:45 p.m. in Pre-council Room (A106) of 
City Hall. 

[The City Council reconvened at approximately 6 p.m.] 

2. Recognition of guests 

Numerous Boy Scouts from Troops 63 (Canterbury United Methodist) and 86 (St. Luke's 
Episcopal) in attendance for their Communications merit badge were recognized by Council President 
Smith. 

3. Small Business Administration "Start-Up" Pledge-Sam Gaston (Appendix 1) 

This matter was tabled. 

September 12.2016 



Minute Book 88 

4. Watkins Branch pedestrian bridge and sidewalk connections to Phase 5b project-Dave 
Giddens of Nimrod Long and Associates (Appendix 2) 

The consensus of the elected officials was that the landscape architect proceed with the 
bidding process as planned. 

5. Bridge over Shades Creek in Jemison Park (Appendix 3) 

6. Early Retirement Window-Steven Boone (Resolution No. 201 6-1 19 was added to the formal 
meeting agenda.) 

7. Conditional Use for MPower Pilates at 2419 Canterbury Road-Dana Hazen (Appendix 4) 

The members of the City Council expressed their opposition to the conditional use application 
out of concern for the limited parking in the area during the lunch time. The applicant, 
therefore, withdrew her application. 

8. Request by Erma St. John for city's assistance in plantings at the Williamsburg Circle 
entrance off Overton Road (Appendix 5) 

The members of the City Council expressed their support for the request and asked that the 
policy (Resolution No. 2009-051) be amended to take into consideration neighborhood gateways. The 
amendment shall be considered at the September 26,2016 City Council meeting. 

9. The following matters were added to the formal meeting agenda: 
a. Dr. Richard Craig, Executive Director of the Blount, Jefferson, St. Clair Mental Health 

Authority will address the governing body regarding the Authorities fiscal 2017 budget 
request ($2,100) 

b. Resolution No. 201 6-03 1 regarding employee and retiree medical premiums 

10. Review of the matters to be considered at the formal [7 p.m.] meeting. 

2. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct synopsis of the discussion from the meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A106) on September 12,2016, and that the meeting was duly 
called and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and 
that no formal action or votes were conducted at said meeting. 

City Clerk 

September 12,2016 



Minute Boak 88 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

SEPTEMBER 12,2016 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 12th day of Septetnber, 2016. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. S~nitli, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Satn Gaston and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for tlie 
transaction of business. 

1. RECOGNITION OF GUESTS 

Council President Smith recognized three Boy Scouts from Troop 63 (Canterbury United Methodist) 
in attendance for their Co~nmunications merit badge. 

2. PRESENTATIONS 

Mayor Oden read aloud and prsented the Constitution Week proclamation (2016-1 13) to Ms. 
Halcyann Badham of the Cahawba Chapter of the Daughters of American Revolution and Beth Stewart of the 
National Chapter and Gynecological Cancer Awareness Month proclamation (2016-1 14) Ms. Mary Anne 
King, Executive Director of the Laura Crandall Brown Foundation. 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith then announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on 
the consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the August 22,2016 regular meeting of the City Council 

Approval of the minutes of the August 25,20 16 special meeting of the City Counci! 

2016-113 The week of September 17th through 23rd 2016 proclaimed Exhibit 1 
"Constitution Week" 

2016-114 September 2017 proclaimed '%ynecologic Cancer Awareness Exhibit 2 
Month" 

2016-115 Appoint Kelly Hulsey to the Tree Commission, to serve without Exhibit 3, 
compensation through September 12,20 19 Appendix 1 

2016-1 16 Appoint Elizabeth Poynor to the Tree Commission, to serve Exhibit 4, 
without compensation through September 12,20 19 Appendix 2 



Minute Book 88 

Reappoint Penny Page to the Emmet O'NeaI Library Board, to 
senpe without compensation through October 30,2020 

Exhibit 5 

Reappoint Max Pulliam to the Emmet O'Neal Library Board, to 
serve without compensation through October 30, 2020 

Exhibit 6 

Authorize the City Manager to offer continuing medical 
coverage to eligible employees (namely 20 years of City sewice 
at any age or 10 years of City service for ages 60 and over) who 
elect to retire between October 1,20 16 and June 1,20 I7 

Exhibit 7, 
Appendix 3 

Reject all bids (B-20160804-132) with respect to the 
construction of a new public safety training building at the 
Public Works complex 

Exhibit 8, 
Appendix 4 

Ratify the engagement of Richard Riley Simpson under the 
supervision of Brasfield & Gome (Resolution No. 201 6-095) to 
perform rnoisturc abatement exploration services at the Emmet 
O'Neal Library building in relation to the ongoing service 
agreement previously authorized (Resolution Nos. 2016-058) 

Exhibit 9, 
Appendix 5 

STPBH-37 16( ) Right-of-way Agreement with respect to the 
Old Brook Trail Bridge (#012869) and Canterbury Road Bridge 
(#002873) rehabilitation project 

Appendix 6 

STPBH-3716( ) Preliminary Engineering Agreement Old Brook 
Trail Bridge (#012869) and Canterbury Road Bridge (#002873) 
rehabilitation project 

Appendix 7 

STPBI4-3716( ) Utility and Construction Agreement Old Brook 
Trail Bridge (#012869) and Canterbury Road Bridge (#001873) 
rehabilitation project 

Appendix 8 

Authorize the execution authorizes the execution of an 
Agreement for Services between the City and Regional 
Planning Commission of Greater Binninghaln with respect to 
an 80% APPLE-funded Mountain Brook Sidewalks Feasibility 
Study 

Exhibit 10, 
Appendix 9 

Declare certain property surplus and authorizing its sale or 
disposition 

Exhibit I I 

Authorize the execution of a settlement agreement with respect 
to the Alabama Furniture Market, LLC v. City of Alabaster, et. 
ai. Circuit Court of Shelby County, AL - CV 12-90033 1 

Exhibit 13, 
Appendix 11 

Authorize the execution of a professional services agreement 
behveen the City and Sain Associates for construction, 
engineering and inspection services with respect to the Phase 9 
sidewalk project 

Exhibit 14, 
Appendix 12 

Authorize the execution of an auditing services addendum to the 
master agreement (Resolution No. 20 16-1 10 adopted August 
22,2016) between the City and Public Resource Management 
Alliance Corporation with respect to the City's tax and license 
administration 

Exhibit 15, 
Appendix 13 

September 12.2016 



Minute Book 88 40 f 

2016-131 Establish tlie employees' and retirees' monthly premiums for Exhibit 16, 
medical insurance effective September 19,201 6 and October 1, Appendix I4 
201 6, respectively (last updated by Resolution No. 201 5-1 19) 

2016-132 Accept the professional services proposal submitted by Exhibit 17, 
Gresham, Smith and Partners with respect to engineering design Appendix 15 
services for the bridge replacement on Caldwelt Mill Road over 
Little Shades Creek and authorizing the execution of a 
professional services agreement for same subject to review by 
legal counsel 

2016-133 Increase the salary schedule for all cla~ified and unclassified Exhibit 18 
employees by 1-1/2% effective October 4,2016 and increasing 
the compensation for contract security services for the City's 
Public Works facilities (Resolution No. 2013-146) by 1-112% 
effective October 4,20 16 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes, proclamation and resolutions were introduced by Council President 
Slnith and their immediate adoption was moved by Council member Shelton. The minutes, proclamation and 
resolutions were then considered by the City Council. Council member Woinack seconded the motion to 
adopt the foregoing minutes, proclamation and resolutions. Then, upon the question being put and the roll 
called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Ptitchard, Ill, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd Shelton 
Alice Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said Council minutes, proclamation (Nos. 2016-1 13 
and 114) and resolutions (Nos. 201 6-1 15 through 2016-126 and 201 6-128 through 2016-133) are adopted by s 
vote of 5-0 and as evidence thereof she signed the same. 

4. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION (NO. 2016-127) APPROVING THE LUNCll TIME 
CONDITIONAL USE APPLICATION FOR ICE HOUSE AT 2708 CULVER ROAD 
SUBMITTED BY TOM SHEFFER (EXHIBIT 12, APPENDIX 10) 

The resolution was introduced in writing by Councii President Smith who then invited questions and 
comments from the audience. There being no comments or discussion, Council President Smith called for a 
motion. Council member Carl made a motion for the adoption of the resolution. The resolution was then 
considered by the City Council. Council member Shelton seconded the motion to adopt the foregoing 
resolution. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd Shelton 
Alice Wornack 

Nays: William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said resolution (No. 2016-127) is adopted by a vote 
of 4-1 and as evidence thereof she signed the same. 

September 12,2016 



402 Minute Book 88 

5. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 1693 AND 
PROIIIBITING SMOKING IN CERTAIN ENCLOSED AND OUTDOOR PUBLIC PLACES 
IN TI-IE CITY (EXHIBIT 19) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited questions and 
comments from the audience. There being no comments or discussion, Council President Smith called for a 
motion. Council Womack made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would 
prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent 
to the immediate consideration of said ordinance is given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be 
waived. The tnotion was seconded by Council President Smith and failed as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Wiiliam S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: Jack D. Carl 

The Council President Smith declared the motion failed by a vote of 4-1. This matter may be 
reconsidered on September 26,201 6. 

6. CONSIDEIUTION OF AN ORDINANCE (NO. 1957) AMENDING CHAPTER 14 OF THE 
CITY CODE WITH RESPECT TO THE BUILDING PERMIT FEE FOR NON- 
RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION PERMITS (INCREASED BY $1 PER %1,000 OF 
CONSTRUCTION VALUE TO BE PAID TO THE STATE OF ALABAMA TO FUND THE 
CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY CRAFT TRAINING PROGRAM TO BE ADMINISTERED 
BY THE ALABAMA CRAFT TRAINING BOARD PURSUANT TO ACT 2015-308 OF THE 
ALABAMA LEGISLATURE) (J2XIIIBIT 20, APPENDIX 16) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Stnith who then invited questions and 
comments. There being no comments or questions from the audience, Council President Smith called for a 
motion. Council member Shelton made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would 
prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent 
to the immediate consideration of said ordinance is given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be 
waived. The motion was seconded by Council member Womack and was carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared the motion passed by a vote of 5--0. 

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Shelton then moved 
for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith. Thereupon, 
Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, DI, Council President Pro Tempore 
lack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

September 12,1016 



Minute Book 88 403 

The Council President Sinith declared that the said ordinance (No. 1957) is hereby adopted by a vote of 
5--0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

7. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE (NO. 1958) ADOPTING THE CITY'S FISCAL 2017 
BUDGET (APPENDIX 17) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Sinith who then invited Council 
member Shclton to offer comments concerning the proposed budget. 

Mr. Shelton stated that the General Fund budget reports $37 million in revenue and a net surplus of 
$766,000. He also thanked the staff for their efforts in assembling the budget. 

There being no further comments or questions from the audience, Council President Sinith called for a 
motion. Council member Shelton made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would 
prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent 
to the immediate consideration of said ordinance is given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be 
waived. The motion was seconded by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard and was carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Sinit11 declared the motion passed by a vote of 5-4 .  

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Shelton then moved 
for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council member Womack. Thereupon, 
Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared that the said ordinance (No. 1958) is hereby adopted by a vote of 
5-0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

8. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE WO. 1959) INCREASING THE SALARY (1-112%) 
OF THE CITY MANAGER EFF'ECTIVE OCTOBER 4,2016 AND AMENDING THE 
RELATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (EXHIBIT 21) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited questions and 
comments. There being no comments or questions from the audience, Council President Smith called for a 
motion. Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless 
suspended, would prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that 
unanimous consent to the immediate consideration of said ordinance is given and that the reading of the 
ordinance at length be waived. The motion was seconded by Council member Carl and was carried, as 
follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 

September 12,2016 



Minutc Book 88 

Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared the motion passed by a vote of 5-0. 

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Shelton then tnovcd 
for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council member Womack. Thereupon, 
Council President Smith called for vote with the fojlowing results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared that the said ordinance (No. 1959) is hereby adopted by a vote of 5-0 
and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

9. PUBLIC 1-IEARlNG TO CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE (NO. 1960) AMENDING SEC. 129-295 
OF THE CITY CODE REGARDING OPEN HOUSES, HOME TOURS, AND SPECIAL 
EVENTS IN RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS (EXHIBIT 22) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited questions and 
comments. There being no comments or questions from the audience, Council President Stnith called for a 
motion. Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless 
suspended, would prevent the immediate conlsideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that 
unanimous consent to the immediate consideration ofsaid ordinance is given and that the reading of the 
ordinance at length be waived. The motion was seconded by Council member Womack and was carried, as 
follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton . 

Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared the motion passed by a vote of 5-0. 

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Womack then 
moved for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith. Thereupon, 
Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

J:\hlinutes 8: AgcndaslCouncil\lOt~20160912 Minuts doc September 12,2016 



Minutc Book 88 405 

The Council President Smith declared that the said ordinance (No. 1960) is hereby adopted by a vote of 5-0 
and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

10. DR. RICIIARD CRAIG, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF TI-IE JEFFERSON, BLOUhT, ST. 
CLAIR MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY (APPENDIX 18) 

Upon conclusion of Dr. Craig's address, President Smith informed Dr. Craig that the City's 201 7 
budget (Ordinance No. 1958) includes an appropriation to the Authority in the amount of $2,100, as requested. 

11. ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council Presidenl Stnith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be 
held on Monday, September 26,201 6 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Halt located at 56 Church 
Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (~~v\v.mtnbrook.org) for more 
information. 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Council President Smith adjourned 
the meeting. 

13. CERTIFICATION 

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at 
City Hall, Council Chatnber (Room A108) on September 12,2016, and that the meeting was duly called and 
held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a 
quorum was present. 

City Clerk 

EXHIBIT 1 

PROCLAMATION (2016-1 13) 

WI-IEREAS, The Constitution of the United States of America, the guardian of our liberties, 
embodies the principles of limited government in a Republic dedicated to rule by law; and 

\VI-IEREAS, September 17,201 6, marks the two hundred twenty-ninth anniversary of the framing of 
the Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional Convention, providing a historic 
opportunity for all Americans to remember the achievements of our Founding Fathers and to reflect on the 
actions of Americans who for the past 229 years have defined the words of the Constitution by exercising their 
rights and responsibilities as citizens; and 

WHEREAS, It is fitting and proper to accord official recognition to this magnificent document and its 
memorable anniversary, and to the patriotic celebration that which will commemorate it; and 

WHEREAS, Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by the President of 
the United States of America designating September 17th through 23rd as Constitution Week; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Lawrence T. Oden, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 
City of Mountain Brook, do hereby proclaim the week of September 17th through 23rd 2016, as 

CONSTITUTION WEEK 

J:\Minutcs 8: Agendw',CounciNO 16VO I60912 Minutes doc September 17,7016 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-135 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
Chris Mitchell is hereby reappointed to the Board of Zoning Adjustment, to serve without 
compensation, his term to end September 13,2019. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certifj the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on September 26,2016, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Chris Mitchell Reappointed to BZA 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-136 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
William Hereford is hereby reappointed to the Board of Zoning Adjustment, to serve without 
compensation, his term to end August 9,201 9. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its reguIar meeting held on September 26,201 6, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City CIerk 

William Hereford Reappointed to BZA 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-137 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City. of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the City CounciI hereby awards the bid (#B-20160706-112) for scheduled maintenance of the 
HVAC mechanical systems at The Emmet O'Neal Library to Metro Mechanical Services, Inc. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama that the City Manager is hereby authorized to issue a purchase order and to execute 
such other documents that are determined to be necessary with respect to said service 
arrangement. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be st true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on September 26,20 16, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Library HVAC Scheduled Maintenance Bid Award 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

P. 0. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213-0009 
Telephone: 205.802.2400 
www.rntnbrook.org 

B-20160706-112 Library HVAC Scheduled Maintenance Bid Tabulation 
Bid Opening: Friday, September 16,2016,lO a.m. 

Mike Thomas with Brasfield & Gorrie discussed bid numbers with the three (3) contractors that successfully 
submitted bids. After independently discussing filter quantities and frequencies of changing them, it appears 
everyone is confident of the following: 

RTU-I and RTU-2 - Each contractor was confident replacing filters every 60 days is the correct approach. 

Filters > Specified (Each) 
$1,254.00 

$475.00 
$622.00 

Presented after 10 a.m. 

Contractor Fixed Monthly Bid 
1 Brown Mechanical Contractors, Inc. $1,786.00 

PIU's (above ceiling units) - With the 60-day filter program in place for RTU-1 and RTU-2, each contractor 
was confident that a yearly replacement of these filters was the correct method. 

2 
3 
4 

Brown Mechanical - Brown ineluded filters changes for all PIU's every other month. I requested they make 
adjustments to their filter program in order to get a comparable cost with Metro and H&M. Their adjusted 
numbers for comparison purposes were $1 ,I 87 fixed per month (v. $1,786) and $664 per set of additional 
filters (v. $1,254). These adjustments were determined to gain an understanding as to why Brown's quote was 
so much more than the other bidders. 

H&M Mechanical - Fixed monthly cost was $17.90 per month ($214.80 per year) higher than Metro, but their 
additional filter set number was $147 less than Metro. 

H&M Mechanical, Inc. 
Metro Mechanical Services, Inc. 
Tnne  

Metro Mechanical - Fixed monthly cost was lowest at $71 8.68, but their additional filter set number was $147 
more than H&M. However, if a full set of additional filters were required, Metro's total cost package would 
still be $67.80 less than H&M's total package. H&M's annual cost will be less than Metro's assuming eight 
(8) RTU filter changes are necessary in a year (as opposed to the base six (6) filter changes). 

I-. 
$71 8.68 

Presented after 10 a.m. 

With all three (3) contractors thinking only one set of PIU filters would be required per year, it appears the 
additional filter [set] quote is not be a major concern. Additionally, the 60-day replacement regiment for the 
two RTU's should be sufficient so the likelihood of having to implement the additional cost supplement for 
filters above what is contained in the base bid, is not anticipated. 

Therefore, the lowest monthly base bid should be the determining factor for this award (received from Metro 
Mechanical). The City would then have the advantage of working with the same contractor performing the 
maintenance work for both the Municipal Complex and adjacent Emmet O'Neal Library. 

Respect h l l  y, 
Mike Thomas 



B-20160706-112 Library HVAC Scheduled Maintenance Bid 

Steve Boone <boones@mtn brook.org> 

to Carl, chip, brian.kerr, greg.arnacher, Mike, Susan, Doris 

Afier careful review, the recommendation to the City Council for the bid award will be 
Metro Mechanical having determined to meet the qualifications and specifications and 
submitting the best bid. Metro submitted the lowest fixed monthly bid. While H&M 
Mechanical submitted a lower additional cost for RTU filter replacements above the 
minimum of six (6) per year, Metro's total annual cost is lower assuming no more than 
seven (7) RTU filter changes annually. The City is confident that the six (6) minimum 
filter changes should be sufficient. 

The bid award will not be official until after the City Council votes Monday evening. 

Again, than you all for your participation. If you have questions, please contact me. 

-A 

Steven Boone 
City of Mountain Brook 
P. 0. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213-0009 
Direct: (205) 802-3825 
Facsimile: (205) 874-061 1 

h ttp://m tnbrookcitv. blogspot. corn/ 
Twittea: @mountain-brook 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-138 

WHEREAS it has been determined, based on administrative review of the application, that 
Crown Castle NB East, LLC has submitted a substantially complete application seeking approval for the 
installation of one (1 )  new support structures within the public right-of-way in the vicinity of Hastings 
Road (BRM079) for the proposed installation/expansion of a small cell data network; and 

WHEREAS, after due consideration of said application and observing first-hand each of the 
proposed installation site, the City Manager hereby recommends the issuance of permits for the 
installation of such new support structure, and 

WHEREAS the City Council has caused notices to be delivered to property owners whose 
property abuts the public right-of-way on which the new support structure is proposed to be installed for 
the purpose of informing said affected property owners that the City Council will review the City 
Manager's recommendation and consider whether the permits for its installation shall be issued by the 
City; and 

WHEREAS after due consideration of the application, the recommendation of the City Manager, 
public comments, and the public interests promoted from the expansion of the small cell data network 
within the City; now, therefore, 

BE IT FUCSOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby approves the installation of the one ( I )  additional support structure as identified in the 
application and authorizes the City Manager or his designee to issue a permit (or permits) for such 
installation in accordance with the City Code, and subject to the following specific condition: 

I .  That the applicant provide a survey of the subject location, ensuring that the proposed pole 
location is in the public right-of-way; 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on September 26,201 6, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

DATE: 

TO: 

RE: 

September 11,201 6 

Mayor, City Council & City Manager 

Small Cell Support Structure (Crown Castle) 

FROM: 

Dana 0. Hazen, AlCP 
Director of Planning, Building & 
Sustainability 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 
Telephone: 205/802-3821 

Dana Hazen, City Planner 

On August 8,2016, the Council approved three out of five proposed new support structures for Crown 
Castle's Segment 1. AAer working with affected property owners of the remaining two structures the 
Woodhill Road structure has been eliminated from Segment 1 (to be proposed along a different road in 
a future segment) and the Hastings Road structure has been relocated approximately 120 feet to the 
northeast near the common property lines of 2800 and 2808 Hastings Road. 

This new location was one option put forward to Crown Castle by the owners of 2800 Hastings Road. 
Affected property owners were notified of the proposed change and of the consideration of such at the 
September 26th Council meeting. As may be seen in the attached photographs, there is currently an 
existing trafic sign indicating an approach to a traffic island. The new pole is proposed in this same 
location, and the Public Works Department has indicated that the traffic sign may be mounted on the 
new pole. 

Per Ordinance 1948, the City Manager must review all applications for compliance with the ordinance 
and fonvard a recommendation to the Council for any new support structures. The plans, simulated 
photos and application checklist for the proposed new support structure are attached. The City 
Manager's recommendations for the pole is located at the bottom of Sheet 4 of the application 
checklist. 

Tile City Mn~muger has rrconrnler~ded upprovial of this npplictrtion. with the folla~ving conditiorl; 

That t i~e crpplicmlt srrbnlit n sie-vey of the slrbjcct locntio~l confirn~ing tlrnt i! fc~lls ~vitl~ia tlie 
prrblic i-iglit-of-wny. 

Ordinance 1948 limits the City's review period to a maximum of 90 days from the date of application 
submittal, at which time its final decision to approve or disapprove must have been rendered to the 
applicant. Segment 1 applications were received by the City on June 23,20 16; the 90-day pa-iod will 
apire October-31, 2016 (taking into account the initial 9-day turn-around time for requested 
suppiemental information, and the supplemental 3 l d a y  turn-around time from Council cany over on 
August 8 to revised location submittal on September 8, during which times the review period was 
suspended). 















RESOLUTION NO. 2016-139 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that Sally 
Legg is hereby reappointed to the Village Design Review Committee to serve without compensation until 
August 23,201 9. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 20 16. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
meeting held on September 26,201 6, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

SaIly Legg VDR [Relappointment 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-140 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
John G. Wilson is hereby appointed to serve on the Tree Commission (filling the unexpired term 
of Ken Key), to serve without compensation, with the term of office to end December 12,201 7. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on September 26,201 6, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

John G. Wilson Appointed to the Tree Commission 2016-140 



From: Simeon Johnson [mailto:~irneoniohnson@rnsn.com] 
Sent: Thursday, September 22,2016 2:36 PM 
To: Sam Gaston; Janet Forbes; Virginia Smith 
Subject: John Wilson bio 

Hi Sam, 

Please find below the bio for John Wilson. He plans to attend Monday night but needs to know what 
time. I told him it would be about 5:30. Is that correct? 

Sim S.W. Johnson 
cell 205.215.8621 

John Golightly Wilson is a LEED-accredited professional who has nearly two decades of 
experience in creating stunning, natural designs in both residential and commercial settings fiom 
the eastern shores of Maryland to Pensacola Beach, Florida. AAer graduating from Clelnson 
University with a degree in landscape architecture, John took a position with Atlanta-based 
Howard Design Studio wl~erc he worked for three years, specializing in 11id1-end residential 
design. John then took a position as a project manager wit11 the award-winning finn Cu~n~nins 
Associates in Stonington, Connecticut for two years, before moving to Washington, D.C. to take 
an associate role at Oehme van Sweden & Associates, the nation's premier landscape design firm 
where he gained considerable praise for his contributions to projects suc11 as the new U.S. 
Embassy in Bridgetown, Barbados. 

In 2004, John and wife Brantley Fry, both born and raised in Mountain Brook, Alabama, moved 
back homc, where hc founded Golightly Landscape Arcl~itccture. For the past twelve years he 
has harnessed his years of experience across the United States, fashioning landscape designs 
uniqucly his own. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-141 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby authorizes the creation of one (1) Police Oficer position (Class no. 
603 14, G17/10) for the Police Department to be filled at the discretion of the City Manager in 
accordance with the "Rules and Regulations" of the Personnel Board of Jefferson County for the 
purpose of assigning an APOST-certified position to the White Collar Crime Task Force overseen 
by the U. S. Secret Service and Jefferson County District Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certifL the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on September 26,201 6, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Create A Police Officer Position 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-142 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes additional professional services as described in Exhibit A attached hereto with 
respect to the professional services agreement between the City and Nimrod Long & Associates 
previously authorized (Resolution No. 201 5-1 80) regarding the installation/construction of a pedestrian 
bridge over Watkins Branch. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 20 16. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of  the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of  a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its regular meeting held on September 26,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Nimrod Long & Assoc. - Pedestrian Bridge Over Watkins Branch Addendum 2016-142 



N i m r o d  L o n 6  

A n d  A . . n c i a t c m  

September 19,201 6 

Mr. Sam Gaston 
City hlanager, City of Moundn Brook 
56 Chorcl~ Strert 
P.O. Rox 130009 
Mountain Rroak AL. 33213 

1 Sidewdks at Watkins Branch Bridge 
Request for Additional Services 

Dcat Sam: 

'Ihank you far contacting us regarding Cons Administration Scrviccs for the proposed pcdeshinn 
bridge and sidcwalk connection project at  We are proposing chis construction observation 
as Additional Scrviccs to the origin:il on an hourly basis. 

Our Construction Administration Services will include thc following: 

NLA will ohtnin proposal for Testing including concrctc strength, and bridge footing compaction by 
a qualified geotechnical engineering firm (actual gcotechnicnl wotk pcrformcd to be bilIcd scpamtcly 
by the geotcchnical rrigineering fum); 
Gcncr;ll observation oC all phases of the construction for conformance to plans atld ~pccifir~~tions, 
and written reports to inform the City OF the work progress; 
Revicw of field layout staking of bridge and &l components; 
Review of shop drawings; 
Review of Contractor's pay applications; and 
Final review and report for Final Acceptance. 

Wc propose to invoice on an hourly basis up to $Z,OOO.OO for our wotk outlined nhovc. See hourly rates in 
thc odgiflal Agreement 

Thank you for considexing this proposal for Addi~iond Servicc~ 

Sincerely, 

Nimrod Iang and Associates, Inc; 

w e 1  Eliason, ASIA 
President 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-143 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes the execution of a professional services agreement between the City and 
Walter Schoel Engineering Company, inc., in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to the 
installation/construction of a pedestrian bridge over Shades Creek. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its regular meeting held on September 26,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Walter Schoel -Pedestrian Bridge Over Shades Creek 2016-143 



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 

BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

AND 

WALTER SCWOEL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC, 

FOR 

DESIGN O F  A PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE OVER SHADES CREEK 

Mountain Brook, Alabama 

September 22,2016 

This AGREEMENT, entered into by and between The City or  Mountain Brook, Alabama, hcrcinafter referred to as 
tlic Client, and Walter Schoel Engineering Company, Inc., llereinafler referred to as ttic Consultant, engineering 
Scrvices associated with tlie design of a pcdcstrian bridge over Shades Creek in Jemison Park. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

1. FINAL DESIGN PLANS 

Tlic Consultant would assist tlie Client in the design and permitting of the proposed pedestrian bridge. The 
Consultant would also prepare tlie appropriate Floodplain Development permit and No-Rise Certifications for 
tlic bridge locatcd in the Floodway of Shadcs Crcck. Tlic Consultant would also coordinate with a geotccllnical 
and structural engineer for the structural component of thc bridge. The final design package would include the 
following elements: 

Cover Sheet 
Demolition Plan 
LayoutPIan 
Grading and Drainage Plan 
Erosion Control Plan 
Details 
Technical Specifications 

The design would utilize the previously collcctcd topographic information of the site. 

Proposed Fee $ 8,600 Civil Design 
$ 3,850 Structural Design 
$4,800 Geotechnical Analysis 

2. CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 

The Consultant would provide Construction Review to evaluate the Contractor's general conformance with 
plans and specifications. The Consultant will review Shop Drawings, and work with the Contractor and Client 
in solving any minor construction related problems that may arise. 

Hourly Estimate E 1,000 



NOT IN SCOPE OF WORK 

I .  FEMA Letter of Map Revision (LOMR or CLOMR) 
2. ADA accessibility dcsign 
3. Site lighting 
4. Utility improvcmcnts 
5. Shades Creck improvc~ncnts 
6. ADEM NPDES Storm Water Permit, not required (site < I acre) 
7. Front End bid documents and contract preparation 

PAYMENT TERMS 

The Consultant will bill tlic Client montl~ly bascd on work completed during the billing period. Workcompleted will be 
based upon a pcrccntagc of completion for Lump Sum Fees, and will be bascd on timc and materials at the attached 
scliedule of unit rates for Hourly Estimates and Not to Excecd agreements. Payments are due within thirty (30) days of 
invoicc datc. Thc Clicnt's obligation to pay for scrviccs is in no way depcndcnt upon tlic Clicnt's ability to obtain 
financing, obtain approval from any govcrnmcntal or rcgulatory agcncics, real cstatc closing, rcccipt of paymcnt from 
othcr partics or upon successful completion ofthc project. If payment is not rcccivcd within thirty (30) days from datc 
of invoicc, tlic amounts may iricludc a latc charge of 1 K % per month, calculated from said tl~irticth (30'~) day. Should 
Consultant incur attorncy's fccs for collection ofpaymcnt, tllc amount owcd to Consultant sliall includc any and ail said 
fees. Failurc to niilkc payment within sixty (60) days sliall constitute a waiver of the riglit to disputc tlic accuracy and 
appropriateness of tllc invoicc. In addition, Consultant rcscrvcs the right to suspcnd scrviccs undcr this Agrecment until 
sucll timc as paymcnt is madc in full for all amounts duc for scrviccs rcndcrcd and cxpcnscs incurred lias been reccivcd. 



Senior Principal 

Principal 

Chief Land Surveyor 

Senior Project Manager 

Project Manager 2 

Project Manager 1 

Senior Professional 

Project Professional 
Staff Professional 
Senior Designer / Survey Draflsman 1 Specialist 

Designer A' Survey DraRsman / Specialist 2 

Designer i Survey DraRsman ! Specialist 1 

Field Survey Party 

Laser Scanning Field Crcw 

Laser Scanning Specialist 

Intern/Support 

Courier 

Transportation 
Materials (Stakes and Hubs) 

(Fhi!sing) 
(Iron Pins and Caps) 

(Spray Paint) 

250.00 per hour 
170.00 per hour 

170.00 per hour 

140.00 per hour 

130.00 per hour 

120.00 per hour 

120.00 per liour 

105.00 per liour 

95.00 pcr hour 

95.00 pcr hour 
85.00 pcr hour 

75.00 per hour 

165.00 per liour 

400.00 per liour 

125.00 per hour 

60.00 per hour 

25.00 pcr delivery 

0.50 per mile 

0.35 each 
2.50 pcr roll 

5.00 each 

5.00 per can 

Printing and other reimbursable expenses will be charged at cost, and are not included in thc fec basis described 
above. Sub-consultant invoices will be billcd to the client at a rate of I 10% of the sub-consultant invoice. 
Overti~ne rates may apply for work required during non-standard work hours. 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

I )  Services performed under this Agreement will be conducted in a manner consistent with that levcl of carc and skill 
exercised by members of the profession currently practicing under similar conditions. Plans, specifications, and 
submittals will bc prepared in accordancc with thc writtcn standards of the governing authorities having 
jurisdiction. Any extraordinary requirements for approvals will be considered additional services. No other 
warranty, expressed or implied, is made. Nothing in this agreement is intended to create, nor shaIl it beconstrued to 
create, a fiduciary duty owed by either party to the other party. 

2) The Client hereby agrees that to the hllest extent permitted by law the Consultant's total liability to Client for any 
and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses of damages whatsoever arising out of or in any way relating to the project, 
the site, or this Agreement, from any cause or causes including but not limited to the Consultant's negligence, 
errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, breach of warranty shall not exceed the greater of the total 
amount paid by the Client for the services of the Consultant under this contract or $50,000.00, whichever is greater. 
The Consultant's liability shall expire one ( I )  year from the completion date of the provision of services for each 
phase of the work. 

3) The figures given above and in the body of this Agreement are based on the Scope of Work as described herein. If 
the above outlined Scope of Services is changed, or ifthere are other services that may be requested by the Client, 



these additional services will also be performed at the above unit rates, or a revised fee will be negotiated to the 
satisfaction of both the Client and Consultant at that time. The Consultant reserves thc right to adjust these unit 
rates for inflation costs on a one-year interval from thc date of this proposal. 

4) All claims, disputes, and other mattcrs in controversy between Consulta~it and Client arising out of or in any way 
related to this agreement (othcr than as a result of Client's failure to pay amounts due hereunder) will be submitted 
to mediation before, and as a condition precedent to, othcr remedies providcd by law. Mediation sllall bc held in 
the county where the projcct is located, and if the parties cannot agrcc on a mediator then one shall be appointed by 
the American Arbitration Association (AAA). Parties agrcc to split cost of mediation 50-50. 

5) Services not expressly set forth in writing as basic or additional services and listed in the proposal to this 
Agreement are excluded from the scope of the Consultant's services, and the Consultant assumes no duty to the 
Clicnt to perform such services, 

6) Client, at its expense, will provide the Consultant with all required site information, existing plans, reports, studics, 
projcct sclrcdulcs and similar information that is contained in Client's files. The Consultant may rely on the 
information provided by the Client witlrout verification. The Client slrall participate with the Consultant by 
providing all information and criteria in a timely manner, review documents and make decisions on project 
alternatives to ttrc extent ncccssary to allow tlrc Consultant to perform the scopc of work within established 
sclrcdulcs. 

7) Consultant slrall sccure and maintain insurance as required by law or statutory requirements whiclr will protect him 
from claims undcr the workers compensation acts and from claims for bodily injury, death, or propcrty damage that 
may arise from the performance of his services undcr and purmant to this Agrccmcnt. Certificates of sucll coverage 
will be provided to Client upon request. 

8) All reports, plans, documents, or otller materials resulting from the Consultant's cfforts shall remain the property of 
the Consultant and arc intended solely for the purpose of this Agreement. Any reuse by Clicnt for purposes outside 
of this Agrecment or any failurc to follow Consultant's recommendations without Consultant's written permission 
slrall be at the user's sole risk. 

9) This Agrecment may be terminated by cither party upon seven (7) days written notice in the event of substantial 
failure to pcrfornl in accordance with the terms of the agreement by the othcr party through no fault of the 
terminating party. If this Agrccmcnt is terminated, it is sgrccd that Consultant shall be paid for total charges for 
labor performed to the termination notice date, plus reimbursable charges. 

10) Neither party to this Agrecment will be liable to the other party for delays in performing the services, nor for the 
direct or indirect cost resulting from such delays, that may result from labor strikes, riots, war, acts of governmental 
authorities, extraordinary weather conditions or othcr natural catastrophes, or any other cause beyond the 
reasonable control of either party. 

1 1) The invalidity of any portion of this Agrecment will not and shall not be deemed to affect the validity of any othcr 
provision. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, the parties agree that the 
remaining provisions shall be deemed to be in full force and effect. 

12) The Consultant shall not be responsible for construction site safety or construction procedures, nor will the 
Consultant be responsible for the quality of the work performed by the contractor or other consultants. 

13) Consultant may, at Client's request and for Client's convenience, provide documents in electronic format. Data, 
words, graphical representations, and drawings that are stored on electronic media or which are transmitted 
electronically, may be subject to uncontrollable alteration. The printed, signed and sealed hard copy is the actual 
professional instrument of service. In the event of a discrepancy between the electronic document and the hardcopy 
document, the hardcopy document will prevail. 



SUBMITTED: ACCEPTED: 

Consultant: Walter Schoel Engineering Company, Inc. Client: The City of Mountain Brook, Alabamu 

Signature: hklf &/&n!E 
Name: Walter Schoel Ill 

Title: President 

Date: September 22.201 6 

Signature: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Please print or type the following infomation for tile individual, firm or corporation responsible for payment. 

Company: 

Client or Client's authorized representative: 

Street Address: 

City, State, Zip:_,. ,,, 

Phone Number: Fax Number: 

Email Addrcss: 

Client's Project Number: Client's Purchase Order Number: 



ADDENDUM TO AGFlEEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

WALTER SCHOEL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC. 
DATED SEPTEMBER 26,2016 

THIS ADDENDUM ("thelthis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and Walter Schoel Engineering Company, Inc. ("the 
Contractor") dated September 26,201 6. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting o r  inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting o r  inconsistent terms o r  provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights o r  
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or  under otherwise applicable law, or to (b) 
reduce, restrict, o r  eliminate rights o r  remedies that would be available to the City under othenvise 
applicabk law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, o r  supplement of o r  to the principal agreement, whether o r  not expressly acknowIedged 
o r  incorporated therein. No agent, empIoyee, o r  representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, or  suspend the operation of the Addendum or  any of its terms or provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

I .  Dcfinitiorts. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "Tlie City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "The Agreet~~ertt" refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor. 

C. "The Contractor" refers to the person, tirm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

Arbimion; Mediniiort; AItenrnte Disprite Resolutiort. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to tlie 
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such 
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Attorney's Fees; Court Costs; Litigntiorr Experrses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to tlie extent such fees, costs, 

Page 1 of 3 



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor. 

4. Late Payment Cliarges; Fees; Itrterest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete 
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution of the dispute. 

5. l~rde~tirrifiatiorr; HoIl-Uarrrtless; Release; Waiver; Lintitations of Liability or Rentedies. The 
City shall not and does not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereoc nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void. 

6. Choice of Lnrv; Cltoice of Ventre or Forrtnt. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of 
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent 
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty 
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperfortnance of the agreement shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of 
law. 

7. Construction of Adderrditnt. Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
of law. 

8. Alabanm Intntigrnllio~~ Larv Conrpliance Contract. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it 
unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States 
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire fbr employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify 

Page 2 of 3 



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its perforlnance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit the E-VeriQ Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-VerifSr Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any 
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shalt require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fahion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this 26th day of September, 2016. 

Walter Schoel Engineering Company, Inc. City of Mountain Brook, Alnbamn 

Its : Its : 

Page 3 of 3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-144 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby awards the bid for the construction and installation of a pedestrian bridge over Watkins 
Branch to Gillespie Construction, LLC having been determined to meet all specifications and submitting 
the best bid. 

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of a construction agreement and such other 
documents determined to be necessary with respect to said project. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its regular meeting held on September 26,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Watkins Branch Pedestrian Bridge Bid Award 



N i m r o d  L o n 6  

A n d  A s ~ o c i a l c r  

September 22,2016 

Mr. Sam Gaston 
City Manager, City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook a. 3521 3 

RE Watkins Branch I'edestrian Bridge, 
Mt. Brook #G-20160125-004 
Bid Recommendation 

Dear Sam: 

We have reviewed the four bids received today and recommend that the City of Mountain Brook 
enter into contract with Gillcspie Constcuction LLC, the lowest responsible bidder, in t l ~ c  Base Bid 
amount of $207,530.00. Plcase nore that Giespie's basc bid amount of $212,780.00 included 
$5,250.00 for sales tax, which we have subtracted. 

Sincerely, 

Nimrod Long and Associates, Inc. 

- 
Joel Eli;lson, ASLA 
President 



THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

Watkins Branch Pedestrian Bridge CERTIFIED TABULATlON OF BIDS 

,PROJECT #G-20160125064 
AS TABULATED BELOW.BlDS WERE RECEIVED: 

MTE; 22-Ssp16 n&. 2100 PM 

CONTRACTOR 

'Century Contruction & Realty, Inc. 

'Construction Services Group, LLC 

GEN. CONTR. 
LICENSE NO. SURETY 

Gillespie Construction LLC 

Landscape Services, Inc. 

'Stone Building LLC 

Tortorig1 Construction. Inc. 

Walker Patton Company. Inc. 
- ~ -  

X 

X 

X 

X 

SEALED AND WERE 

#47928 

M601 

#I1804 

$21 347 
- ~ 

BASE BID 

----- 

'No Bid Submitted 

1 CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE BIDS WERE RECEIVED 

"'$207,530 

$263,799.59 

"8377,426 00 

S284.208.40 

PUBLICLY OPENED AND 

BID ALT #1 -DEDUCT 

$1,500.00 

$2,000.00 

S?,OMI.OO 

S3.000.00 
- -  

READ ALOUD AT THE 

BID ALT #2-DEDUCT NOTATIONS 

- 

$5,100.00 

$5,949.45 

$5.000.00 

$5,000.00 
-- 

TIME AND PLACE 

" $212,780 Base Bid included $5,250 for 
sales t a ~  

"$383,861 Base Bid included !§6,435 for 
sales tax. 

INDICATED AND THAT THIS IS A TRUE 



Watkins Creek Pedestrian Bridge 
September 22,2016 

2:00 pm 

Gillespie 
Base Bld: $212,780.00 
Alternate #I: - 1,500 
Alternate #2: - 5,100 

Landscape Services 
. Base Bid: $263,799.59 

Alternate #1: -2,000 
Alternate #2: -5,949.45 

Wal ker-Patton 
Base Bid: $284,208.40 
Alternate #1: -3,000 
Alternate #2: -5,000 

Tortori~i 
Base Bld: $383,861.00 
Alternate #1: -1,000 
Alternate #2: -5,085 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-145 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes either the Mayor or City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City, lease 
agreements with Armans, LLC and Redstone Holdings, LLC, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibits A 
and B, respectively, with respect to the two leased public parking lots located in English Village. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of September, 20 16. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on September 26,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

English Village Parking Lot Lease@) Renewals 2016-145 



boone
Text Box
EXHIBIT A

boone
Text Box
26th       September









boone
Text Box
EXHIBIT B

boone
Text Box
26th          September









cm OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

P. 0. Box 130009 
Mountaln Brook, Alabama 35213-0009 
Telephone; 205.802.2400 
www.mtnbrookorg 

Date: 2016-Sep14 
To: Sam Gaston, City Manager 
From: Steven Boone 
Subjecl: Amend lhe fiscal 2017 budget 
C; Mayor and members of the City Council 

The following changes lo the 2017 budget have been requested by Chiel Cook rdated to the purchase of a vehkk for the new task force 
position that was approved (the vehicle was inadvwlently omitted from the budget adopted on September 12 (Ordinme No. 1958). 

General 
Operations Capital 

(loo) Projects (441) 

Adopted Revised (Surplus) I (Surplus) I (Surplus) I 
Ledger Description ~ u d g e t  Budget ~ e f l c l l  Deficit oeficit 
Ordinance 1958 (Surplus) Deficit (pgs 21 and 26, respectively) S ( 7 ~ , 0 0 0 )  5 126,320 

441-3590-6730-3523 Equipvehicle for Task Force OHicer 
441 -MOB-481 0 Transfers General Fund 
100-11 16-6971 Transfers Capilal Projects 

Tolal 

Ordinance No. 1961 adopted September 26,2016 (Surplus) l Deficlt 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OFTHE ClTY COUNCIL OF THE ClTY OF lllOUNTAlN BROOK, 
ALABAMA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 

OCTOBER 1,2016 AND ENDING SEPTEkIBER30,2017 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Bmok, Alabama, that the following is the adopted budget for all 
major funds o f  the City for the fiscal year beginning October 1,2016 and ending September 30,2017: 

Gcncral Pnrk Librnry Capital Otlicr Al l  
Operations Board Board Projects Governrncntnl Otlrcr 

Funds Avnilablc: ( 100) (1 15) (70X) (417/428/441) 15XW600) (132114WL53) 
Rcvcnucs: 

Taxes S 30,660,989 S 0 S 0 S 0 S 391,300 S 0 
Licenses and permits 4-5 1 1,900 0 0 0 0 0 
Intergovernmental 0 50,900 0 0 0 45,598 
Charges for service4 54 1,300 92.800 8,000 0 388,000 45,600 
Fines and forfeitures 494,000 0 55,000 0 192,100 0 
Grants 0 0 1 1,138 1,621,200 0 0 
investment Earnings 1 11,000 500 270 19,200 4,440 8,200 
Miscellaneous 3 13,400 3,000 1,500 25,000 1 75,000 0 
Proceeds from the issuance o f  debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Proceeds fmm the sale o f  property 0 0 0 0 0 0 
lntrafund transfers in: 
General Openlion9Capital 0 0 0 3,438,416 725,205 0 
Park Board 0 0 0 165,000 0 0 
Library Board 0 0 0 tOS,OOO 0 0 
Other (14Xt153) (45,599) 0 0 0 0 0 
E-9 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Operating bansfurs in-component unit 0 0 25,000 0 0 0 
Donations 0 7 1.400 38,000 0 0 

(Surplus) ~ A ~ I I  I) 16.9PO 3.643.794 (154,497) {13.IW) 

Total Fund Availablc 3 35.863.990 S 147,200 S 199,298 S 9.065.610 S 1,621,548 S 66.199 

Expcnditurcs: 
Legislation and management 
Planning, Building & Sustainability 
Intergovernmental 
Unasigned benefits 
Finance 
Fire 
Inspection Services 
Police 
Street and Sanitation 
Parks and Recreation 
Library 
Debt scrvice payments 
Openling transfers-out: 

General Fund 
Capital Pmjectd 
Special Revenue 
Debt Service (Other) 
Other fun& (Other) 
Park Board 
Library Board 

Total Expcnditurcs S 35,863,990 S 147.200 S 199,298 S 9.065.610 S 1,611,548 S 66.199 



BE IT  FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council o f  the City o f  Mountain Brook, Alabama that the City Manager o f  the City 
is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf oftlie City, to disburse funds for the payment of budgeted expenditures including 
and not limited to salaries and bencfita, payroll taxes, service and other contracts, debt service. utilities. supplies and such other 
obligations incurred by the City in the normal course of municipal, public safety, and recreational operations. 

ADOPTED: The 26th o f  September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: The 26th of September, 2016. 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk o f  the City o f  Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify tire above to be a true and correct copy o f  an 
ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Bmok at its meeting held on September 16,2016, as same appears in the 
minutes of record o f  said meeting, and published by posting copies thereon on September 27.2016, at the following public places as 
required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilclirist Pllarmacy, 2850 Calraba Road 

Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 

City Clerk 



C
, 
a
 

hO
 

'E
l 
s
 

m
 

Q
I 
s
 

E
 

Q
, 

>
 

a
 

PL 
= C

 
s
 

m 
= L 

-!!;A 

Q
) 
E
 

Q
I 

w
 

b
 

In
 

r
l
 

a
J
&
 

0
 

-5 
N
 

N
 

L
L

 

7
 

la- 
g C

 
$
 

3 
Q

J 

=a? 
3" 

FS
 

Q
 

-
 

C
 

*- 
rn 

V
I 

C
 

3
 

0
 

m
 

2
 

P
I 

n
 







General Operations (Fund 100) Budget Summary 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Year Ended 

Revenues 
Expenses and lntrafund Transfers: 

General Government 
Legislation & Management 
Planning 
Intergovernmental 
Benefits (Unassigned) 
lntrafund Transfers-Park Board 
lntrafund Transfers-Library Board 
lntrafund Transfers-All Other 

Finance 
Administration 
Revenue 
Accounting 
Network Administration 

Public Safety 
Fire 

Administration 
Training & Safety 
Prevention 
EMS Transportation 
Suppression 

Inspections 

Police 
Administralion 
Training 
Patrol 
Detectives 
School Resource Officers 

Public Works 
Administration 
Gargage & Trash Contract 
Heavy Construction 
Traffic & Right-of-way 
Fleet Maintenance 

Actual Budget Projected Budget 
201 5 201 6 2016 2017 

$ 34,697,560 $ 35,484,800 $ 35,693,997 $ 36,639,589 

Total Expenses and f ransfers 33.800.962 34.850.846 34,125.580 35,909,589 

Surplus (Deficit) $ 896,598 $ 633,954 $ 1,568,417 - 



Statement of Budgeted Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in  Fund Balance (Fund Financial Statements) 
City of Mountain Brook. Alabama 
Year Ended 

2017 
Other 

General Capital Governmental Total Governmental Funds 
Fund Projects Debt Service Funds Budget Budget Actual 

IXX, 7XX 4XX 6XX 5XX 201 7 201 6 201 5 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 30,660,989 $ 0 $ 0 $ 391.300 $ 31,052.289 $ 29,863.300 $ 29,006,089 
Licenses and permils 4,511.900 0 0 0 4.51 1,900 4,588,700 4,525,166 
Intergovernmental 96,498 0 0 0 96,498 95,714 92,199 
Charges for services 687.700 0 0 3a8.000 1,075,700 1,158,248 1,133.897 
Fines and forfeitures 549,000 0 Q 192.1001 741,100 765,100 856,401 
Grants 11,138 1,621,200 0 0 1,632,338 1,054,138 123,157 
Investment Earnings 126.970 29,200 1,000 3.440 138.610 21 3,762 t 60.61 0 
Miscellaneous 31 7,900 25,000 0 175.000 51 7,900 468,500 507,144 

Total Revenues 36,962,095 1,675,400 1,000 1,149,840 39,788,335 38.1 32.31 0 36,457.81 5 

Expenditures: 
General government 5,334.71 5 39,220 0 270.625 5,644,560 6.590.875 4.664.126 
Public safety 15,355,093 1,679,320 0 475,882 17,510,295 17,232.544 f 5,423,035 
Street & sanitation 6,675,645 6,859,570 0 875.041 14,410,256 13.71 5,971 7.666,361 
Recreational 1,291,478 41 8,500 0 0 1,709,978 1,643.398 1,540,750 
Library 3,231,734 69.000 0 0 3,300,734 3,235.345 3.1 62,203 
Debt service 0 0 0 0 0 3,746.641 357,350 

Total Expenditurns 31,888,665 9,065,610 0 1,621,548 42,575,823 46,164,774 32,813,825 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 5,073,430 (7,390,210) 1,000 (471,708) (2,787,488) (8,032,464) 3,643,990 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds fmm the issuance of debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating transfen in 0 3,708,416 300,000 425,205 4,433,621 4,975,265 6,014,055 
Operating transfen (out] [4,433,621) D 0 0 (4,433,621) (4,975,265) (6,014,055) 
Ooeratinq transfers in-comment unit 25.000 0 0 0 25,000 25,000 144.450 - - -. 
Donations 71,400 38.000 0 0 109,400 81,400 86,495 

Total Other Financing Sources (4,337,221) 3,746,416 300,000 425,205 134,400 106,400 230,945 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Financing Sources Over 

kpenditures and other Financing Uses 736,209 (3,643,794) 301,000 (46,503) (2,653,088) (7,926,064) 3,874,935 
Fund balance, beginning of year 15,577,275 14,442,964 929,702 826,037 31,775,978 34,410,095 30.535. 1 78 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 16,313,404 S 10,799,170 S 1,230,702 S 779,534 $ 29,122.890 $ 26,484,031 $ 34,410,113 



Schedule of Historical General Fund Revenues by Source 
City of Mountain Brook. Alabama 
Year Ended September 30, 

Taxes 
Real properly 
Sales and use 
Occupational 
Utility 
Personal property 
Road and bridge 
Olher 

2008 

$ 13,919,181 
8,412,007 

0 
1,336,420 
1,130.239 

572,272 
985.588 

Total taxes 26,355,707 

Budget 
2016 2016 2017 

Projected 
15 14,443,548 5 14,808,889 

10,362,653 ll.141,000 
0 0 

1,283,444 1,283,400 
1,378,933 1,392.700 

595.991 596,000 
1.488.060 1.439.000 

29,552,629 30,660,989 

Ucenses and permits 
Business 1,994,039 1,998,980 2,130,822 2,165.612 2,223,912 2,492,623 2.531.307 2,679,512 2,771,000 2,851,921 2,909,000 
Construclion permits 1,036,354 634,059 624,309 753,444 800,820 1,100.204 1,347,563 1,143,394 1,137,000 1,133,065 905,000 
Cable N franchise fees 323,082 328,641 347,757 352,964 391,701 424,912 389,500 423,068 402,000 427,000 427,000 
Watermrks Board 167,341 157.794 159,242 207,939 216,090 216,839 192,875 215.518 216,000 208,099 208,000 
Other 63.382 57,966 64,720 60.310 61,928 62.115 65.154 63,674 62.700 62.839 62.900 

Totalllcensesandpermlts 3,584,198 3.177.440 3,326,850 3,540,269 3.694.451 4,296,693 4,526,419 4,525,166 4,508,700 4,682,924 4,511,900 

Intergovernmental 149,710 84,723 82,826 84,874 85.61 3 84,547 85,443 92,199 95.714 94,148 96,498 

Charges for services 
Garbage fees 71,252 39.094 34,062 32,436 39,235 35,589 34,086 33,890 36,700 28,030 28,000 
Other 498,576 486,785 591,636 619.716 714.581 693.408 730.347 695.790 733.548 704,629 659.700 

total charges for services 569.828 525,879 625,698 652,152 753,796 728,997 764.433 729,680 770,248 732,659 687.700 

Fines and fodeltures - court 470,020 443,400 514,542 529,522 446,682 559,465 577,844 643.492 573,000 544,247 549,000 

Grants 37,355 50,799 19,708 282.423 12,062 15,755 100.167 53,653 11,138 11,306 11,138 

Other operaUng revenue 
Investment earnings 428,304 271,788 207,214 131,706 19,888 138,162 69.522 150,669 104,970 118,379 126,970 
Other 230.71 7 371.526 254,173 300.657 458.142 439.492 311.374 296.043 268.500 31 8.032 317,900 

Total other operating 
revenue 659,021 643.314 461.387 432,363 478.030 577.654 380,896 446.712 373.470 436.41 1 444.870 

Total Revenues 5 31,825,839 S 31.292.888 S 31.313.770 S. 31,904,525- S 331450.420. 5-34,294,465 S 35,110.391 S 35,884.270 S 36.054.324 S 36.962.095 



Combintng Statement of Budgeted General Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Year Ended 

2017 Budget 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
lnlergovernmenlai 
Charges for sewices 
Fines and lorleilures 
Grants 
lnvestmenl Earnings 
Miscellaneous 

General General Park Drug Asset Community Emergency Phase 3 Court Library 
Fund Operations Board Forfeitures Fund Reserves Fields Cash Bonds Operating Books Endowment 

Total 100 115 132 I42 146 149 153 701 702 703 

5 30,660,989 5 30,660,989 S 0 5 
4,511,900 4,5t1,9W 0 

96.498 0 50,900 
687.700 541,300 92.800 
549,000 494,000 0 
11.138 0 0 

126,970 118,000 5W 
317,900 313,400 3,000 

Total Revenues 36,962,095 36,639,589 147,200 

Expenditures: 
General government 5,334,715 5,334,715 0 0 0 0 0 P 0 0 0 
Public safely 15,355,093 15,355,093 0 0 0 0 0 D 0 0 0 
Street 8 sanitation 6.675.645 6,675.645 0 0 0 0 0 il P [I 0 
Recreational 1,291,478 0 1,154.680 0 D D 136,798 0 0 I) 0 
Library 3,231,734 0 0 D 0 0 0 0 2,843,074 388,660 0 
Debt service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

T otal Expenditures 31,888,665 27,365,453 1,154,680 0 0 0 q36,798 0 2.843.074 388,660 0 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 5,073,430 9,274,136 (1,007,480) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds from the issuance of debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Operaling transfers in 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating transfers (out) (4,433,621) (8,544,136) 1,007,480 0 0 25,000 45,589 0 2,777,436 255,000 0 
Operating transfers in-component unit 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 
 ona at ions 71,400 o o o 0 0 0 o o 71.400 o 

Total Other Financing Sources (4,337,221) (8,544,136) 1,007,480 0 0 25,000 45,599 0 2,777,436 351,400 0 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Financing Sources Over 

Expenditures and other Financing Uses 736,209 0 0 0 33,200 (1) 0 0 (27,190) 200 
Fund balance, beginning of year 15,577.275 I L , I O ~ , J I L  81.097 10.236 10,970 2,508,200 (1,403) 0 0 129,604 54,199 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $16,313,484 S 13,514,372 S 81,097 S 10.236 S 10,970 S 2,541,400 S (1,404) S 0 S 0 S 102,414 S 54,399 



Combining Statement of Budgeted Capital Project Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Year Ended 

2017 Budget 

Capital lnlrastructura Grant 
Prolects Projects Funded Capital 

Total 41 7 428 441 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Licenses and permils 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fines and forleitures 
Granls 
Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous 

S 0 S 0 S 0 s 0 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 

1.621.200 115,200 1,506,000 0 
29,200 10,000 1,200 48,000 
25,000 0 0 25.000 

Total Revenues 1,675,400 125,200 1,507,200 43,000 

Expendllures: 
General government 39,220 0 0 39,220 
Public safety 1,679,320 0 0 1579,320 
Slreet i3 sanilalion 6,859,570 4,266,000 1,891,809 701,761 
Recreational 41 8,500 276,000 0 142,500 
Library 69,000 0 0 69,000 
Debt service 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditures 9,065,610 4,542,000 1,891.809 2.631,BOf 

Excess (den ciency) of revenues 
over expenditures (7,390,210) (4,416,800) (384,609) (2,588,801) 

Other Flnancing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds from Ihe issuance of debt 0 0 0 0 
Operaiing transfers in 3,708.416 861.326 384,609 2,462,481 
Operating transfers (oul) 0 0 0 0 
Operating lransfers incamponent unit 0 0 0 0 
Donations 38.000 38.000 0 0 

Total Other Financing Sources 3,746,416 899,326 384,609 2,462,481 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Financing Sources Over 

Expenditures and other Flnanclng Uses (3,643,794) (3,517,474) 0 ( 1 2 6 , 3 2 0 ) o  
Fund balance, beginning of year 14,442,964 4,715,548 528,661 9,198.755 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $10,799,170 S 1,198,074 S 528,661 $ 9,072,435 



Combining Statement of Budgeted Other Governmental Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
City of Mountaln Brook, Alabama 
Year Ended 

2017 Budget 
Other 

Governmental Gasoline Tax Funds E-911 Corrections 
Funds 5q 74 44 24 District Fund 

Total 521 522 523 524 531 554 

Revenues: 
Taxes S 391,300 $ 59,000 L 206,000 S 121,000 S 5,300 S 0 S 0 
Licenses and permits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Intergovernmental 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Charges for services 388,000 0 0 0 0 388.000 0 
Fines and forfeitures 192,100 0 0 0 0 2,100 190,000 
Granls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Investment Earnings 3,440 I00 1,700 300 40 1,300 0 
Miscellaneous 175,000 0 175,000 0 0 0 0 

Total Revenues 1,149,840 59,100 382,700 121,300 5,340 391,400 190,000 

Expenditures: 
General government 270,625 0 0 0 0 D 270.625 
Public safety 475,882 0 0 0 0 331,m 144,580 
Street & sanitation 875,041 42.784 705,899 123,017 3.341 0 0 
Recreational 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Library 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Debt senrice 0. 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditures 1,621,548 42.784 705,899 123,017 3,341 331.302 415,205 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (471,708) 16,316 (323.1 99) (1,7171 1,999 60,098 (225,205) 

Other Financlng Sources (Uses): 
Pmceeds from Ihe issuance of debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating transfers in 425.205 0 200,000 0 0 0 225,205 
Operating transfers {out) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating transfers incomponent unit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Donations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Other Financing Sources 425,205 0 200.000 0 0 0 225,205 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Financing Sources Over 

Expenditures and other Financing Uses (46,503) 16,316 (123,199) (1,717) 1,999 60,098 0 
Fund balance, beginning of year 826,037 14,306 306.152 63.121 5.501 436,757 0 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 5 779,534 S 30,622 S 183,153 $ 61,404 S 7,500 S 496,855 S 0 
11% M% 22% 3% 

Debt 
Service 

600 



Statement of Changes in fiduciary Net Position 
Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Fund 
Year Ended September 30 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions 

21 5-3408-4810 Employer 
21 5-3407-4231 Plan membels 
21 5-3407-4400 Investment earnings 

Actual Budget Projected Budget 
201 5 2016 201 6 2017 

TOTAL ADDITIONS 81 7,896 871,000 783,269 806,000 

DEDUCTIONS 
21 5-1 1 15-61 30 Benefits 
21 5-1 100-6"' Administrative expense 

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 489,000 553.000 454,000 486,000 

NET INCREASE 328,896 318,000 329.269 320,000 

Net position held in trust for other post-employment 
benefits, beginning of year 1,571,336 1,900.232 1.900.232 2,229,501 

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR OTHER 
POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, END OF YEAR $ 1,900,232 $ 2,218,232 $ 2,229.501 $ 2,549,501 

201 7 Budgeted 
201 6 Projected 
201 5 
201 4 
2013 
2012 
201 1 
2010 
2009 

Note: 
Effective October 1,2006, GAS6 45 required local governments to account for their other past-employment benefit plans (OPEB) similar to its method of accounting for 
its defined benefit pension plans. The City% OPEB plan includes retiree medical insurance. On July 27,2009, the City Council authorized the creation of an Internal 
Revenue Code Section 115 trust (Resolution No. 09-101) and began depositing funds into the trust to offset its obligation for retiree medical benefits. Following is a 
summary of the City's deposits into the Sec. 115 trust since its creation, and trust balances, actuarial accrued liability (AAL) and unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
(UAAL) as of September 30 : 

September 30 
Net Total Trust 

Trust Deposit Premiums Expense Balance AAL UAAL 
$ 300,000 $ 354,000 $ 654.000 $ 2,549.501 $ (3,463,260) $ (913,759) 

300.000 335,000 635.000 2,229,501 (3,686,855) (1,457.354) 
300,000 358,063 658,063 1,900,232 (3,865,805) (1,965,573) 
300.000 359,756 659,756 1,571,336 (3,992,253) (2,420.917) 
320,000 350,923 670,923 1,260,448 (3.560.42 1) (2,299,973) 
300,000 354,828 654,828 925,335 (3,155,271) (2,229,936) 
200.000 364,016 564.016 613,573 (3,249,729) (2,636.156) 
200,000 322,671 522,671 403,024 (3,473,472) (3,070,448) 
180,000 35,118 215,118 196,320 (2,859,543) (2,663.223) 

$ 2,400,000 $ 2,834,375 $ 5,234,375 



ORDINANCE NO. 1962 

AN ORDLNANCE TO PROVIDE FOR A STOP SIGN ON ROBIN CIRCLE AT ITS 
INTERSECTION WITH ROBIN DRIVE AND TO PROVIDE FOR PUNISHMENT 

FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows: 

Section 1. It shall be unlawful for the driver of any vehicle to cause or allow such vehicle 
traveling in an southwesterly direction along Robin Circle to pass its intersection with Robin Drive when 
there is standing at said intersection a "Stop" sign facing in the direction of such driver without having 
first brought such vehicle to a complete stop within ten (1 0) feet of said intersection. 

Section 2. Any person violating the provisions of this ordinance shall be punished by a fine 
not to exceed $500.00, or by imprisonment not to exceed 180 days, or both. 

Section 3. All ordinances or portions of ordinances conflicting with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall become effective when published as required by law. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROWD: This 26th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on September 26,20 16, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on September 27,2016, at the following public places, 
which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 

City Clerk 

Stop Sign on Robin Circle at Robin Drive 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

56 Church Street 

PO. Box 130009 

Mountain Brook. Alobama 3521 3 
Telephone 205.802 3803 

Fax 205.870 3577 
gaslons@mtnSrook.org 

S A M  S.  GASTON 
CITY MANAGER 

September 14,201 6 

Dear Resident, 

The City of Mountain Brook will consider an ordinance at its September 26lh City 
Council meeting establishing a "stop" sign on Robin Circle at its intersection with Robin 
Drive (See attached map). The City Council meeting will begin at 7:OOpm. 

You are invited to attend this meeting to offer your comments on this proposed "stop" 
sign. If you cannot attend, but would like to submit comments, please contact our Police 
Chief, Ted Cook, at 802-3852 or co~kt@mtnbrook.org. You can also contact me at 802- 
3800 or pastons@mtnbrook.or~. 

Sincerely, 

&% Sam S. Gaston 

City Manager 

Attachment 





Page 1 of 1 

Sam Gaston 

From: U-Drift CEO 

Sent: Sunday, September 18,2016 1141 PM 

To: Sam Gaston 

Subject: Re: Robin Or Stop sign 

3525 Robin Circle. Please don't put a full Stop sign there. A Yield sign is all that is needed. 
Please don't make me come to  a full stop every time I leave my driveway. 

From: Sam Gaston 
Sent: Sunday, September 18,2016 1:03 PM 
To: U-Drift CEO 
Subjeet: RE: Robin Dr Stop sign 

What is your address? The proposed stop sign is only for motorists leaving Robin Circle entering Robin Drive. No 
stop signs proposed for Robin Drive, 

Sam S.Gaston 
City Manager 
C i  of Mountain Brook. AL. 
56 Church Street 
P.O. BOX 130009 
Mountain Brook AL. 3521 3 
(205) 802-3803 Phone 
(205) 870-3577 Fax 

From: U-Drift CEO [ m a i l t o : ~ M ~  
Sent: Sunday, September 18,2016 11:51 AM 
To: aastonsbmtnbrook.oq; !Amy Nunneley 
Subjeet: Robin Dr Stop sign 

Dear Sam, 

I live at the intersection o f  Robin Drive and Robin Circle. Please ...p lease don't make me come to  a full 
stop before turning into my driveway. If you want a Yield sign or a speed bump, no problem ... but I'm 
entirely against a Stop sign at my intersection. 

Kind Regards, 

Christopher Nunneley 
205-601-7146 (texts t o  this # and email are preferred when I am in the field, thanks!) 



Page 1 of 1 

Sam Gaston 
--  . . . . . -. . - - - - 

From: Ben Hogan 

Sent: Tuesday, September 20,2016 6:00 AM 
To: gastons@mtnbrook.org 
Cc: Carolyn Hogan; dentonl76193@bellsouth.net; jennadorlon@gmail.com; 

amy-nunneley@hotmaiI.com 
Subject: proposed stop sign at Robin Circle 

Does the city of Mountain Brook really need a stop sign directed at the 5 residents of this Circle? It is 
insulting and a complete waste of taxpayer money. In the 3 1 years we have lived here we have not 
missed being told to stop at this intersection before entering Robin Drive. 

We add ow opposition to that of our neighbors the Nunneleys from whom you have already heard 

R. Ben Hogan, Ill 
Hogan Law Office, PC 
3100 Robin Circle 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35223 
(p) 205-327-5235 
(9 205-327-5237 
ben. hoganlaw@qmaiI.com 
http:lhrvww. hoganlawoffice.com 



Sam Gaston 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Robert Denton 
Thursday, September 15,2016 5:28 PM 
gastons@mtnbrook.org 
Stop sign at corner of Robin Drive and Robin Circle 

Dear Mr. Gaston, I received your proposal today for a stop sign at my corner. I've lived 
here for over 38 years and really haven't seen the need for a stop sign. My vote is not to 
put one there as it will just be a nuisance to all concerned who travel that way. Thank 
you for your consideration in this matter. Robert C. Denton 



ORDINANCE NO. 1963 - AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 1693 AND TO 
PROHIBIT SMOKING IN CERTAIN ENCLOSED PLACES AND CERTAIN OUTDOOR 

PUBLIC PLACES IN THE CITY 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama is aware that studies show 
that ( I )  second-hand smoke exposure can cause disease and premature death in children and adults who 
do not smoke; (2) children exposed to second-hand smoke are at an increased risk for sudden infant death 
syndrome (SIDS), acute respiratory problems, ear infections, and asthma attacks; (3) even occasional 
exposure of adults to second-hand smoke can have immediate adverse effects on the cardiovascular 
system and can cause coronary heart disease and lung cancer; (4) there is no risk-free level of exposure to 
second-hand smoke; (5) establishing smoke-free public places and places of employment are the only 
effective ways to ensure that second-hand smoke exposure does not occur in such places because 
ventilation and other air cleaning technologies cannot completely control exposure of non-smokers to 
second-hand smoke; and (6) evidence from peer-reviewed studies shows that smoke-free policies and 
laws do not have an adverse economic impact on the hospitality industry; 

WHEREAS, the Council is aware that studies have shown that (1) residual tobacco 
contamination, or "third-hand smoke," from cigarettes, cigars, and other tobacco products is left behind 
after smoking occurs and builds up on surfaces and furnishings; (2) tobacco residue can linger in spaces 
long after smoking has ceased and continue to expose people to tobacco toxins; (3) sticky, highly toxic 
particulate matter, including nicotine, can cling to walls and ceilings; (4) gases can be absorbed into 
carpets, draperies, and other upholsteries, and then be reemitted (off-gassed) back into the air and 
recombine to form harmful compounds; and (5) even the rapid absorption and persistence of high levels 
of residual nicotine from tobacco smoke on indoor surfaces, including clothing and human skin, exposure 
to "third-hand smoke" can represent an unappreciated health hazard through dermal exposure, dust 
inhalation, and ingestion; 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that unregulated electronic smoking devices, commonly referred 
to as electronic cigarettes, or "e-cigarettes," closely resemble and purposefully mimic the act of smoking 
by having users inhale vaporized liquid nicotine created by heat through an electronic ignition system, 
and that their use in workplaces and public places where smoking of traditional tobacco products is 
prohibited creates concern and confusion and leads to difficulties-in enforcing the smoking prohibitions; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama is concerned about the 
health hazards induced by breathing second-hand smoke which include lung cancer, heart disease, 
respiratory infection, and decreased respiratory function, including bronchospasm; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama finds and declares that the 
purposes of this ordinance are (1) to protect the public health and welfare by prohibiting smoking in 
certain enclosed public places, enclosed places of employment, and certain outdoor public places; (2) to 
regulate the use of electronic smoking devices like other traditional forms of smoking; (3) to promote the 
right of non-smokers to breathe smoke-free air, and to recognize that the need to breathe smoke-free air 
shall have priority in certain places over the desire to smoke; and (4) reasonably balance the interests and 
rights of all its citizens regarding smoking in certain public places. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as follows: 

1. Definitions. As used in this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the following 
meanings: 



BAR. An establishment that is licensed by the City for the serving of alcoholic beverages 
that are intended for consumption by guests on the premises. In addition to the 
consumption of those beverages, operations at a bar may include serving of food to the 
public. The term "bar" may include a tavern, nightclub or cocktail lounge. 
CIGAR BAR. A licensed establishment in which the primary activity is the sale, 
manufacture or promotion of cigars or cigar accessories, and in which the sale of the 
other products is merely incidental. 
CITY. The term "City" means the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, a municipal 
corporation. 
CITY PROPERTY. Any real property within the City that is owned, leased or controlled 
by the City or any agencies or boards thereof. The term "City Property" does not include 
any property that is leased to the City by the Mountain Brook Board of Education. 
ELECTRONIC SMOKING DEVICE. Any product containing or delivering nicotine or 
any other substance intended for human consumption that can be used by a person to 
simulate smoking through inhalation of vapor or aerosol from the product. The term 
includes any such device, whether manufactured, distributed, marketed, or sold as an e- 
cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, e-hookah, or vape pen, or under any other product name or 
descriptor. 
ENCLOSED AREA. All area or space between a floor and a ceiling that is bounded on 
at least two sides by walls, doorways, or windows, whether open or closed. A wall 
includes any retractable divider, garage door, or other physical barrier, whether 
temporary or permanent and whether or not containing openings of any kind. 
GOVERNMENT BUILDING. Any building operated or occupied by state, county or 
city government, or any agencies thereof, or any other separate corporate instrumentality 
or unit of state, county or city government. 
GOVERNMENT PROPERTY. Any real property that is owned, leased or otherwise 
controlled or utilized by state, county or city government, or any agencies thereof, or any 
other separate corporate instrumentality or unit of state, county or city government. 
HEALTH CARE FACILITY. "Health Care Facility" means an ofice or institution providing 
care or tteatment ofdiseases, whether physical, mental, or emotional, or other medical, 
physiological, or psychological conditions, including but not limited to, hospitals, rehabilitation 
hospitals or other clinics, including weight conb-ol clinics, nursing homes, long-term care facilities, 
homes for the aging or chronically ill, laboratories, and offices of surgeons, chiropractors, physical 
therapists, physicians, psychiatrists, dentists, and all specialists within these professions. This 
definition shall include all waiting rooms, hallways, private rooms, semiprivate rooms, and wards 
within health care facilities. 
LICENSED BUSINESS. A person, organization or entity required to obtain a license 
from the City in order to engage in business or conduct business in the City. 
OUTDOOR PRIVATE PROPERTY. Outdoor private property is any outside area, land, 
space or place that is owned, leased or otherwise controlled by a private person, including 
any privately-controlled place outside an enclosed place of employment, outside an 
enclosed public place where the public may congregate or in the outside common area of 
a residential, business or commercial development. 
OUTDOOR PUBLIC PLACE. An outdoor public place is any outside area, land, or 
space on government property where the public is invited or may use, including, but not 
limited to, any recreational area, athletic field, stadium, amphitheater, arena, bleachers, 



stage, grandstand, temporary seating area, playground equipment, pavilion, shelter, 
concession stand, picnic table, bench, sidewalk, path or other structure, improvement or 
facility on that place. 

(13) PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT. An area under the conb-01 of a public or private employer, 
including, but not limited to, work areas, private ofices, employee lounges, restrooms, 
conference rooms, meeting rooms, classrooms, employee cafeterias, hallways, interior 
construction sites, temporary offices and vehicles. A "place of employment" does not 
include either (a) the space or area outside an enclosed place of employment if that area is 
on outdoor private property, or (b) a private residence (single family or multifamily) that 
is not used in conjunction with a home occupation involving the employment of persons 
other than those residing in the private residence. 

(14) PRIVATE CLUB. A premise operated by an organization which is not available to and 
not customarily used by the general public and entry and privileges thereto are 
established by regulations of that organization. 

(15) PUBLIC PLACE. An area on public or private property to which the public is invited, 
including but not limited to licensed businesses, bars, restaurants, hotels, motels, health 
care facilities, government buildings, government property, recreational areas, athletic 
facilities, and public transportation shelters. 

(16) RECREATIONAL AREA. Any area in the City that is open to the public and primarily 
intended for recreational purposes, whether or not any fee for admission is charged, including but 
not limited to parks, athletic fields, playgrounds, gardens, golf courses, and bails. 

(17) RESTAURANT. An eating establishment (including but not limited to, coffee shops, 
cafeterias, sandwich stands, and private and public school cafeterias) which gives or 
offers for sale food to the public, guests, or employees, as well as kitchens and catering 
facilities in which food is prepared on the premises for serving elsewhere. The term 
"Restaurant" shall include a bar area within the restaurant. 

( 1  8) RETAIL TOBACCO STORE: A retail store whose primary business is the sale of 
tobacco products and accessories and in which the sale of other products is merely 
incidental. 

( 19) SMOKING: The inhaling, exhaling bwning or wrying any lighted or heated cigar, ciwtte, 
pipe, hookah or any other lighted or heated tobacco or plant product intended for inhalation, whether 
n a d  or synthetic, in any manner or in any fom; the use of an electronic smoking device which 
creates an aerosol or vapor, in any manner or in any hnn; or the use of any oral smoking device for 
the purpose of circumventing the prohibition of smoking in this Ordinance. 

2. Prohibition. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, no person shall smoke in any 
enclosed area in a public place, in any enclosed area at a place of employment or in an outdoor 
public place within the City. This prohibition does not apply to any of the following: 

(1) Smoking in private residences (single family or multifamily), unless used in conjunction 
with a home occupation involving the employment of persons other than those residing 
there; 

(2) Cigar Bars or retail tobacco stores; 
(3) Private clubs; 
(4) Smoking on outdoor private property; and 
(5 )  Smoking at an outdoor public place on City property if a smoker is not within twenty (20) 

feet of a nonsmoker. If a person commences smoking outside on such a place and that 



smoker and a nonsmoker subsequently come within the same twenty (20) foot area, the 
smoker shall not violate this ordinance if they walk through or away from that area or 
otherwise remove themself from it following the request of the nonsmoker. 

3. Signs. ( I )  The owner, operator, manager, or other person'in charge of an enclosed area at a public 
place or an enclosed area at a place of employment within the City shall clearly and 
conspicuously post "No Smoking" signs or the international "No Smoking" symbol (which 
consists of a pictorial representation of a burning cigarette enclosed in a red circle with a red bar 
across it) at those places near all entrances to them. 

(2) The manager or official who is in charge of an outdoor recreational area on City property shall 
clearly and conspicuously post signs near all regular entrances to any such area stating "No 
Smoking within Twenty (20) Feet of a Nonsmoker"; provided that no obligation exists to post 
such signs at or along sidewalks, streets, alleys, ways, trails, or public parking lots or outside 
buildings on City property. 

4, Obligation of Person in Charge. The person in charge of an enclosed area in a public place or an 
enclosed area at place of employment within the City shall not knowingly permit, cause, suffer or 
allow any person to violate the provisions of this ordinance in those places. It shall be an 
affirmative defense to an alleged violation of this subsection that the person having control of 
such a place has asked that the lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, other tobacco product or electronic 
smoking device be extinguished or use of same cease, and has asked the smoker to leave the 
establishment if that person has failed or refused to extinguish the lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe or 
other tobacco products or cease use of an electronic smoking device. 

5. Fine for Smoking Violation. A person who violates the provisions of this ordinance by smoking 
in an area or place prohibited by this ordinance shall be guilty of a violation of this ordinance that 
is punishable by a fine of at least twenty-five dollars ($25.00), but not to exceed one hundred 
dollars ($1 00.00). 

6. Fine for Person in Charge. The owner, operator, manager, or other person in charge of an 
enclosed area in a public place or an enclosed area at a place of employment within the City who 
fails to comply with the provisions of this ordinance shall be guilty of an ordinance violation that 
is punishable by: 

( 1 )  A fine not exceeding one hundred dollars ($1 00) for a first violation; 
(2) A fine not exceeding two hundred dollars ($200) for a second violation within a one ( I )  

year period; 
(3) A fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500) for third or subsequent violations within 

a one (1) year period. 



7. Separate Violations. Each day on which a violation of this ordinance occurs shall be a separate 
and distinct violation. 

8. Enforcement. Jurisdiction for violations of this ordinance shall be with the municipal court of the 
City. A charge of a violation shall be treated in the same manner as a traffic citation. Any law 
enforcement officer may issue a citation pursuant to this section. 

9. Repealer. City Ordinance Number 1693 is hereby amended by this ordinance by repealing such 
ordinance and adopting this ordinance in its place. All ordinances or parts of ordinances 
heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are 
inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby expressly repealed. 

10. Severability. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or 
invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder 
of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

I I .  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective November 1,201 6. 

ADOPTED: This - day of ,2016. 

Council President 

ADOPTED: This - day of , 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on 2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on , 2016, at the following public places, 
which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 
Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 

City Clerk 


	2016-Sep-26 Agenda
	2.  Minutes
	3.  BZA-Chris Mitchell
	4.  BZA-Wm Hereford
	5.  HVAC bids
	6.  Small cell permit
	7.  VDR-Sally Legg
	8.  Tree Commision0John Wilson
	9.  Police officer position
	10. Ped bridge over Watkins Branch
	11. Ped bridge over Shades Creek
	12. Bid award-Ped Bridge over Watkins Branch
	13. Parking Leases
	14. Budget amendment
	15. Stop Sign
	16. Smoking Ordinance



